ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 2, 2011
1:32 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Kevi n Meyer

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Bettye Davis, Chair

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 12

"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of Nursing;
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED SB 12 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 21
"An Act extending senior benefits.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 16
"An Act extending senior benefits.”

- MOVED HB 16 QUT OF COW TTEE
Presentation: Denali Famly Services
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 12

SHORT TITLE: EXTEND BOARD OF NURSI NG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -1- February 2, 2011



01/19/11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) HSS, FIN

02/02/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: HB 16

SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND SENI OR BENEFI TS PAYMENT PROGRAM
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER

01/18/11 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/18/ 11 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/18/ 11 (H HSS, FIN

01/ 25/ 11 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 25/ 11 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

01/ 25/ 11 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

01/ 26/ 11 (H) HSS RPT 6DP

01/ 26/ 11 (H DP: M LLETT, DI CK, SEATON, M LLER,
HERRON, KELLER

01/31/11 (H FIN RPT 10DP

01/31/ 11 (H DP: FAIRCLOUGH, T.WLSQON, GUTTENBERG
JOULE, COSTELLO, NEUMAN, EDGVON,
DOOGAN,

01/31/ 11 (H STOLTZE, THOVAS

01/31/11 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

01/31/ 11 (H VERSION: HB 16

01/31/ 11 (H FIN AT 9: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

01/31/11 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

01/31/ 11 (H M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 02/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 21

SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND SENI OR BENEFI TS PAYMENT PROGRAM
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI, KOOKESH, MEYER, PASKVAN,
MCGUI RE

01/19/11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) HSS, FIN

02/ 02/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

CELESTE HODGE, Staff to Senator Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 12 for the sponsor.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 2- February 2, 2011



NANCY SANDERS, Executive Adm ni strator

Al aska Board of Nursing

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions about the Board of
Nur si ng.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legi sl ative Auditor

Di vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 12.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 16.

MARI E DARLIN, Anmerican Association of Retired Persons (AARP)
Capital Gty Task Force

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 16.

DENI SE DANI ELLO, Executive Director

Al aska Conmm ssion on Aging

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 16.

DI XI E HOOD, representing herself
Juneau, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Requested changes to HB 16.

RON KREHER, Acting Director

Di vi sion of Public Assistance

Department of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 16.

YVONNE CHASE PhD., Chief Executive Oficer

Denali Fam |y Services

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Gave information about Little Steps
Preschool .

KYLE GARDNER, Director
Little Steps Preschool

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 3- February 2, 2011



Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave presentation on Little Steps Preschool.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:32:41 PM

SENATOR DENNIS EGAN, sitting in for Chair Davis, called the
Senate Health and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting to
order at 1:32 p.m Present at the call to order were Senators
Egan, Myer, Dyson, and Ellis.

SB 12- EXTEND BOARD OF NURSI NG

1: 33: 37 PM
SENATOR EGAN announced the consideration of SB 12.

CELESTE HODCGE, staff to Senator Davis, explained that SB 12
extends the termnation date of the Al aska Board of Nursing
(BON) for eight years to June 30, 2019, as recommended by the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Committee in its report of Decenber
2010. The m ssion of the Alaska Board of Nursing is to actively
pronote and protect the health of the citizens of Al aska through
the safe and effective practice of nursing as defined by |aw
The BON plays an inportant role in public health and safety.

NANCY SANDERS, Executive Adm nistrator, Al aska Board of Nursing,
stated she was avail able to answer questions.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the BON deals with Ilicensing censure
I ssues.

M5. SANDERS responded yes, if there is a conplaint from the
public or from another licensee, it is investigated, and if it
is founded, the BON acts to discipline the person's |license

1:35:26 PM

SENATOR DYSON said he was specifically referring to conplaints
having to do with poor nedical practice, and asked in the |ast
five years how many conplaints have they heard per year, and
what percentage of those resulted in disciplinary actions?

M5. SANDERS replied that she did not have specific nunbers in
front of her.

SENATOR DYSON asked if she could give hima general idea.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -4- February 2, 2011



M5. SANDERS replied the board acts on several types of
conplaints, such as conpetency audits, inaccurate information on
an application, and unprofessional conduct. If there was a
violation of unprofessional conduct regulations, the person
woul d be disci plined.

SENATOR DYSON asked if they see wunprofessional conduct that
affects patients.

M5. SANDERS said they do see those types of conplaints, but they
are not the majority; probably five to eight per quarterly board
neeti ng.

SENATOR DYSON responded that he would like to see statistics for
the last four or five years.

M5. SANDERS said the investigations unit would have the nunber
of conplaints, but she would only know the number that resulted
in actions.

1:39:52 PM
SENATOR DYSON said there was no hurry to receive the statistics,
and then asked which groups of nurses can wite prescriptions.

M5. SANDERS said that nurse practitioners, certified nurse
m dwi ves, and certified nurse anest heti sts can wite
prescriptions.

SENATOR DYSON asked if licensed nurses in Alaska are ever under
any pressure to not report unprofessional conduct.

M5. SANDERS replied not that she was aware of.

1:43: 48 PM

PAT DAVIDSON, Legislative Auditor, Division of Legislative
Audit, Alaska State Legislature, said she perforned the sunset
review of the Board of Nursing (BON), and reconmended that the
term nati on date be extended until June 30, 2019. She noted that
she al so made four recommendations to the BON, as foll ows:

 The BON should take action to insure that appropriate
people and agencies are notified when a nurse's
prescriptive authority is revoked.

e« The BON needs to inprove oversight of the CNA training
program especially in terns of the eval uation process.

e The current LPN nmenber on the BON does not neet statutory
qualifications, which require that nenber to be working in

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 5- February 2, 2011



an institutional nursing situation. The nenber who was on
the Board during the review was an LPN working as an
Emer gency Medi cal Techni ci an.

* Fourth, the Division of Corporate, Pr of essi onal and
Busi ness Licenses needs to do nore tinely investigation of
conpl ai nts made agai nst |icensees.

1:44: 04 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked if the BON has a plan of action to address
the Audit Division's reconmendati ons.

M5. SANDERS responded that they are aware of the recommendati ons
and are taking steps to address them as foll ows:

e The BON has instituted policies to notify the federal Drug
Enf orcenent Administration on the first day after a board
neeting in which the board took action to suspend a nurse
practitioner's authority to wite prescriptions.

 The BON is submtting those names to the Board of Pharmacy,
and if there is an enployer they are letting them know
about the suspension or revocation. They are also updating
the disciplinary database on their web site wthin two
weeks of the revocation.

* The division is aware that the CNA training program review
is a federal nmandate that is also in their regulations.
There have been personnel issues, resulting in the position
reviewing the prograns being unfilled. The current person
is on a two-year contract. Eighty-five percent of the CNA
prograns have been recently reviewed and reapproved or not
by the BON.

* The current LPN term on the board expires at the end of
February and a new person has been appointed to board in
the LPN position.

1:45: 36 PM
M5 SANDERS further explained that the suspension or revocation
of a licensed nurse practitioner's license is a very rare

occurrence, and that in four years it has only happened three
times.

1:47:45 PM

SENATOR MEYER noved to report SB 12 from conmmttee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
being no objection, SB 12 noved from the Senate Health and
Soci al Services Standing Commttee.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 6- February 2, 2011



At ease 1:50 p.m to 1:51 p.m

1: 50: 48 PM
SB 21- EXTEND SENI OR BENEFI TS PAYNMENT PROGRAM
HB 16- EXTEND SENI OR BENEFI TS PAYMENT PROGRAM

SENATOR EGAN, acting as Chair, announced the consideration of HB
16. [The conmttee was taking up HB 16 rather than the conpanion
bill, SB 21, because HB 16 was farther in the process.]

1:51:24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, sponsor of HB 16, stated that the
senior benefits paynment program is extrenely inportant. HB 16
extends the program to June 30, 2015. As of Decenber 2010 there
were 10,093 Al askans benefitting fromthe program their average
age was 75, and the ol dest was 105. He explained that the Senior
Benefit Program provides nonthly cash assistance to state
residents 65 or over whose nonthly household inconme does not
exceed poverty |level by federal guidelines. He said the paynents
can either be $125, $175, or $250 each nonth, depending upon the
i ndi vidual"s incone.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER enphasi zed that HB 16 does not change the
program paraneters; the program is self-adjusting, in that the
federal poverty guidelines are annually revised by the United
States government. The bill sinply extends the program by four
years. He further noted that the program costs about $20 million
per year, but the Departnent of Health and Social Services has
the ability to reduce or elimnate benefits in any year that
funds are not available. Because of this, he said, the program
does not becone viewed as an entitlenent.

1:56: 02 PM

MARI E DARLIN, representing the Anerican Association of Retired
Persons (AARP), Capital City Task Force, spoke in support of HB
16. She said we want our retirees to be able to remain in
Al aska, and the senior benefit hel ps nmany of them do that.

1:57:29 PM

DENI SE DANI ELLO, Executive Director, Al aska Comr ssion on Aging,
Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS), noted the
benefits of the program both to seniors and to communities
t hroughout the state. There are not a l|large nunber of seniors
who need the program but it does provide assistance to about 1
in 5 seniors in Alaska. As a person ages and spends down their
assets, their resources becone nore limted, so the program
beconmes nore inportant as they age.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -7- February 2, 2011



1:58: 59 PM

D XIE HOOD, representing herself, said she has lived in Al aska
for 35 years, she is 77 years old, single, and is asking for a
change to HB 16. She feels that the bill should base eligibility
on net inconme, not gross. M. Hood stated she struggles each
month to cover living expenses, and that her nain source of
income is her social security benefit; she also rents a roomin
her honme, and her net incone is approximately $9,000 per year.
But, she explained, the benefit is based on gross incone. She
enphasi zed that it would make a big change for her if the
benefit was based on net incone, rather than gross.

2:05:03 PM
SENATOR DYSON stated he would appreciate hearing why gross
income is used instead of net incone.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the program was | ooking to establish
| owincone criteria that was objective and determ nable, and
that would be annually adjusted. For this reason, he explained,
they use the federal poverty guideline regulations, which do use
annual gross incone. This avoids having to nake judgnental
deterni nati ons about qgual i fication or di scretionary
expenditures. He further stated that it would be very difficult
to throw the open the entire program to a net inconme basis.
Representative Hawker also noted that here are a nyriad of
public service prograns available to help people in M. Hood' s
si tuation.

SENATOR DYSON stated, if we changed to gross incone, and
mai ntained the three incone levels, that would not require
annual adjustnents. It could be based on incone tax returns.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that they wuse the federal
poverty guidelines in order to prevent the legislature from
having to nmake these determinations; the federal poverty
guideline is wused for all public assistance prograns across
Al aska as the nmeasure of poverty.

SENATOR DYSON agai n asked what would be the problem of changing
it fromgross to net.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER replied that if the Senator w shed to
propose an anendnent, he would consider it.

SENATOR DYSON said that he would not propose an anendnent over
the Representative's objections.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 8- February 2, 2011



2:10: 31 PM

RON KREHER, Acting Drector, D vision of Public Assistance,
Departnment of Health and Social Services, noted that generally
speaking, all public assistance programs have a gross incone
test; the gross incone test is an equitable way of naking a
determ nation of eligibility.

2:12:22 PM

SENATOR MEYER noved to forward HB 16 from commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
being no objection, HB 16 noved from the Senate Health and
Soci al Services Standing Conmittee. [Conmpanion bill, SB 21, was
held in commttee.]

Presentation: Denali Famly Services
SENATOR EGAN, acting as Chair, announced the commttee would
hear a presentation from Little Steps Preschool, of Denal
Fam |y Services.

2:13: 38 PM

YVONNE CHASE PhD., Chief Executive Oficer, Denali Famly
Services, delivered a presentation about Little Steps Preschool.
She noted the research showing the inportance of ©pre-

ki ndergarten educati on, and explained that Denal i Fam |y
Services is |located both in Anchorage and the Mat-Su Vall ey, but
the preschool is limted to Anchorage. Little Steps Preschool

serves both typically developing children as well as those wth
special enotional and behavioral needs and they are hoping to
receive funding for using existing buildings and doi ng sone kind
of | ease-purchase in order to have permanence for their program
She noted that child care facilities have special requirenents,
and they would |like to have assistance with the down paynent.

2:16: 52 PM

KYLE GARDNER, Director, Little Steps Preschool, Anchorage, said
that Little Steps is a therapeutically inclusive preschool, one
of six denonstration projects in the country and the only one in
the state of Al aska. He explained that they use a
soci al /enoti onal based curriculum and nmintain a very high
staffing ratio of one staff for every three children, also
including a clinician on site full time. M. Gardner noted that
the social/enotional based curriculum has proven to be very
effective; because of this, the current site has a waiting |ist
of 70 children in Anchorage, and the size of the facility is the
limting factor.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 9- February 2, 2011



2:20: 06 PM

MR. GARDNER stated the preschool is currently located on 5th
avenue, and this allows them to collaborate closely with the
comunity. They offer enriching activities, 12 cl assroom
teachers, a clinician, and weekly consultations with a doctor of
psychol ogy. M. Gardner gave a detailed description of the
program used for each age group of children served, concluded
that their creative curriculum is considered best practice in
the early childhood field, but they are severely limted by |ack
of space.

2:26:15 PM
M5. CHASE noted that other providers in valley don't want to do
a preschool, and that they are becomng a teaching site in

Anchorage for other teachers and ot her centers.

SENATOR ELLI'S asked how preval ent autism spectrum di sorders are
anong their clients.

M5. CHASE responded that autism is hard to diagnose at that
young age, but the program does work with children with FASD and
auti sm spectrum di agnoses, as well as nental health di agnoses.

SENATOR MEYER asked if they are seeing an increase in FASD
clients.

MR. GARDNER responded that FASD diagnosis is nore prevalent in
t he upper childhood years, but that Denali Famly Services is
definitely seeing an increase in FASD children

SENATOR MEYER asked if they are requesting a $400, 000 grant.

M5. CHASE responded that is correct; they would like to have a
bigger place in Anchorage, and are hoping to have a
| ease/ purchase of a building in the valley.

2:30: 42 PM
SENATOR EGAN t hanked the witnesses for their presentation.

2:30: 58 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Senat or Egan adj ourned the neeting at 2:31 p. m

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -10- February 2, 2011



